
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR EDUCATION AND INCLUSION, SPECIAL 
EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITY 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational 
Needs and Disability, Councillor Bob Standley 
 
MONDAY, 26 SEPTEMBER 2022 AT 2.00 PM  
 
REMOTE MEETING VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.   Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 24 May 2022  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
2.   Disclosures of interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the Agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Member regards the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct 
 

3.   Urgent items   
Notification of items which the Lead Member considers to be urgent and propose to 
take at the end of the appropriate part of the Agenda 
 

4.   Household Support Fund  (Pages 5 - 8) 
Report by Director of Children’s Services 
 

5.   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 15 September 2022 
 
Contact Belinda Trunfull, 01273 335230,  
 
Email: belinda.trunfull@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this 
meeting will be broadcast live on its website. The live broadcast is accessible at: 
www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm 
 
 

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR EDUCATION AND INCLUSION, SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND 
DISABILITY 
 
DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational 
Needs and Disability on the 24 May 2022, remotely via Microsoft Teams.  
 

 
Councillors Stephen Shing and Alan Shuttleworth spoke on item 3 (see minute 3).  
 
 
1. DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON 26 APRIL 2022  
 
1.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on the 

26 April 2022.  
 

 
2. REPORTS  
 
2.1 Copies of the reports referred to below are included in the minute book. 
 
 
3. POST-16 TRANSPORT POLICY STATEMENT 2022-2023  
 
3.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Children’s Services regarding 

the proposed Post-16 Transport Policy Statement for the 2022-2023 academic year. 
  
3.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to approve the Post-16 Transport Policy Statement for 

the 2022-23 academic year as set out in Appendix 3 of the report.  
 

Reasons  
 
3.3 The County Council has carried out its legal duty to consult on the annual Post-16 

Transport Policy statement. Following consultation, the proposed statement is unchanged 
from the draft statement. 

 
 
4. PROPOSAL TO LOWER SCHOOL AGE RANGE AT WIVELSFIELD PRIMARY 

SCHOOL  
 
4.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Children’s Services regarding 

statutory notice in respect of a proposal to lower the age range at Wivelsfield Primary 
School by two years to enable the governing body to provide early years provision on the 
school site. 

 
4.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 

 
1) authorise the publication of a statutory notice in respect of a proposal to lower the age 

range at Wivelsfield Primary School from 4-11 to 2-11. The proposal to take effect from 
1 January 2023; and  

 
2) delegate authority to the Director of Children’s Services to amend the proposal prior to 

its publication if required. 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
 
 

 

Reasons 
 
4.3 The proposal to lower the age range at Wivelsfield Primary school would meet the need 

to provide sufficient early years places in the village and help to build on work already 
done by the school, ensuring a fully integrated Early Years Foundation Stage to help 
secure good outcomes for all children. 

 
 
 

Page 4



  

 

1 

Report to: Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational 
Needs and Disability 

Date of meeting: 26 September 2022 

By: Director of Children’s Services 

Title: Household Support Fund (Three) 

Purpose: To consider the proposed Children’s Services use of a proportion of 
the third and latest extension of the Household Support Fund (“HSF 
3”)”) and agree the development of a scheme to distribute grant 
funding as set out in the report 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Lead Member is recommended to: 

1. approve the proposed use of £1,680,000 of the Household Support Fund, to provide 
support to households with children as set out in paragraph 2 of the report; and 

2. delegate authority to the Director of Children’s Services to take all action necessary to 
implement the scheme 

 

1 Background 

1.1 On 26 May 2022 the government announced the third iteration of the Household Support 
Fund (HSF 3) to support those most in need. The extension will run from 1 October 2022 to 31 
March 2023.  

1.2 Contextually the grant arrives just as the last Household Support Fund (HSF2) will finish on 
30 September 2022. The grant follows previous similar schemes which commenced in December 
2020: the Winter Covid Fund Support Grant, the Covid Local Support Fund Grant and earlier rounds 
of the Household Support Fund (HSF 1) (1 October – 31 March 2022, and 1 April – 30 September 
2022).  

1.3 HSF 3 arrives at a time when the cost-of-living crisis and the escalating energy costs are a 
key consideration for the government, and at the forefront of the public’s concerns. 

1.4 The Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) has set out how HSF 3 funds should be 
allocated. The criteria have changed slightly from previous rounds, as follows: 

- Beneficiary groups are households with children, households with pensioners, households with a 
disabled person and other vulnerable households.  

- There is an emphasis on providing support to households that are in the most need – particularly 
those who may not be eligible for the other support that the government has recently made 
available, including the Cost-of-Living Payments set out on 26 May 2022, Energy Support Scheme 
detailed on 29 July and the Council Tax Rebate. The Government expects residents to be able to 
contact authorities to enquire as to eligibility. 

1.5 East Sussex County Council (ESCC) expects to be allocated a total of £3,896,783.88 for the 
HSF 3 scheme. This is approximately the same amount as our allocation for the last two rounds of 
the Household Support Fund. 

2 Supporting information 

2.1 It is proposed that HSF3 is distributed to households in need in several ways including: 

Food vouchers for families of 2-19 year olds eligible for Free School Meals, 
to cover the school holiday periods during the HSF 3 time period  

£1,480,000 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

https://www.facebook.com/eastsussexcc
https://www.facebook.com/eastsussexcc
https://www.facebook.com/eastsussexcc


  

 

2 

2.2  The portion of the Household Support Fund that the Children’s Services Department will 
manage is £1,680,000. The proposal is to provide food vouchers to eligible free school meal pupils 
of £15 for the October half-term, £50 for the Christmas holiday and £15 for the February half-term. 
There are approximately 18,500 pupils eligible for free school meals. £200,000 will also be 
distributed via Children’s Services teams directly to vulnerable families in need. 

2.3 The timescale set out by Government means that funding will need to continue to be 
distributed via the systems set up through HSF 2 and through augmenting existing provision within 
the county, rather than establishing a new dedicated process.  

2.4 The DWP has indicated that it is reasonable for a local authority to plan for HSF 3 using the 
draft guidance and the allocations from HSF 2 as a guide. However, once DWP issues the final 
guidance and local authority allocations (which is expected to be on 1st October 2022), if agreed, this 
report provides delegated authority to the Director of Children’s Services to make the following 
amendments in line with DWP’s final guidance and local authority allocations, namely: 

 beneficiary groups, eligible spend, or monitoring 

 any other changes to HSF 3 that are required to ensure ESCC’s adherence to DWP’s final 
guidance and local authority allocations 

 and any other changes in response to new announcements from the government on energy 
costs to ensure this funding is directed to those most in need.  

2.5  In light of the current cost of living crisis and the increase in energy prices, there is a high 
probability that applications for this fund will exceed the funding available. The Household Support 
Fund Project Officers (Task and Finish) Group (ESCC Children’s and Adult Services, and District 
and Borough Council officers) will oversee the detailed plan for implementation and monitor the 
scheme to end of March 2023.  

2.6 Utilising VCSE partners to implement the scheme adds considerable value in terms of local 
community knowledge and an ability to engage with residents who may not be comfortable with 
statutory services.  

2.7 There is a likelihood that the Household Support Fund will be extended for a further six 
months from 1 April 2023 and that notice of this extension will once again be very short. Planning 
will take place in late winter on the assumption that the fund will continue and that ESCC is ready to 
deliver at pace if this is the case.   

3. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations  

3.1 HSF 3 provides a further opportunity to extend the support to households with children, 
households with pensioners, households with a disabled person and other vulnerable households 
within East Sussex who are experiencing financial challenges.  

3.2 The Lead Member is recommended to approve the proposed use of £1,680,000 of HSF 3 
funding, to provide support to households with children and to delegate authority to the Director of 
Children’s Services to implement the scheme. 

  

Children Services Teams that provide support to vulnerable families and 
children administered funding directly to these to meet identified needs 

£200,000 

VCSE partners to support individuals, at risk of food and fuel poverty 
through using existing referral mechanisms 

£800,000 

Districts and Boroughs to support adults, especially to those not eligible for 
the other support that the government has recently made available, 
including the Cost-of-Living Payments, Energy Support Scheme, and the 
Council Tax Rebate. 

£1,216,783 

Foodbanks and Food partnerships £200,000 

Total: £3,896,783 

Page 6

https://www.facebook.com/eastsussexcc
https://www.facebook.com/eastsussexcc
https://www.facebook.com/eastsussexcc
https://www.facebook.com/eastsussexcc
https://www.facebook.com/eastsussexcc
https://www.facebook.com/eastsussexcc
https://www.facebook.com/eastsussexcc
https://www.facebook.com/eastsussexcc
https://www.facebook.com/eastsussexcc


  

 

3 

ALISON JEFFERY 

Director of Children’s Services 

Contact  

Contact Officer: Jessica Stubbings, Senior Manager Partnerships and Governance 
Email jessica.stubbings@eastsussex.gov.uk     
Telephone 07827 084705 
 
LOCAL MEMBERS  
All 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

None 

 

Page 7

mailto:jessica.stubbings@eastsussex.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 24 May 2022
	4 Household Support Fund

